UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

Inre

James H. Fischer,
GENERAL ORDER NO. 667

A Suspended Attorney.

ORDER DIRECTING NOTICE TO CLIENTS

WHEREAS, James H. Fischer (“Fischer”), by order dated February 6, 2018 (the “EDNY
Order”), was suspended from the practice of law before the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of New York; and

WHEREAS, the EDNY Order is effective 24 days after the date of service upon Fischer
unless otherwise modified or stayed; and

WHEREAS, the EDNY Order was served upon Fischer on February 6, 2018; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Rule 2090-1(a) of the Local Rules of the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of New York, an attorney who may practice in the
District Court pursuant to Civil Rule 1.3 of the Local District Rules may practice in this Court,
and conversely, an attorney who has been suspended by the District Court is also suspended from
practicing in this Court; and

WHEREAS, it appears that Fischer is currently the attorney of record to the plaintiff in
the case listed on Exhibit A to this order, and the failure by Fischer to notify his client of his
suspension and the need to retain substitute counsel may interfere with this Court’s
administration of this case and prejudice the debtor and the creditors of the estate; and

WHEREAS, the State Court Rules governing the conduct of disbarred, suspended and
resigned attorneys requires such attorneys, inter alia, to provide notice to their clients and advise
of the prompt substitution of another attorney and attorneys in their place (e.g. 22 NYCRR §
691.10(d);

NOW, THEREFORE, by resolution of the Board of Judges of the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of New York, and pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 105(a), it is
hereby



ORDERED, that in addition to any other obligations imposed upon Fischer by any court
order, statute, rule or regulation relating to his suspension, Fischer shall, within fourteen days
after the entry of this order give the notice required by 22 NYCRR § 691.10(d)(1) and (3), and in
the manner set forth therein, to any client for whom he has appeared in a case or adversary
proceeding currently pending in this Court, to any attorney for each adverse party in such
adversary proceeding or in any contested matter in any such case, to any chapter 7 or chapter 13
trustee in that case, and to the United States Trustee, and shall promptly file a copy of each such
notice on the electronic docket of the case or adversary proceeding to which it pertains; and it is
further

ORDERED, that Fischer’s attorney password for access to the Court’s Electronic Case
Filing System shall be revoked on the effective date of the EDNY Order; and it is further

ORDERED, that the Clerk of Court is directed to serve this order upon Fischer.

Dated: Brooklyn, New York
March 29, 2018

s/Carla E. Craig
Carla E. Craig
Chief United States Bankruptcy Judge




EXHIBIT A

1. 17-72298-las
Attorney for Debtor Milton Traslavina
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

X
In re: 1:18-mc-00041 (AMD)
JAMES H. FISCHER,
an attorney admitted to practice belore this Court,
Respondent.
- X

BEFORE THE GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

On Dccember 29, 2018, the Supreme Court of the State of New York, Appellate
Division, suspended the respondent from the practice of law before that court.

IT IS ORDERED, pursuant to Local Rule 1.5, that the respondent is suspended
from the practice of law in the Eastern District of New York upon such terms and conditions as
set forth in the Supreme Court of the State of New York’s order, and until further order of this
Court. This order shall become effective 24 days after the date of service upon the respondent
unless otherwise modified or stayed.

If service is unavailablc via ECF, the docketing clerk is directed to mail a copy of
this order 1o the respondent, and to close this action without prejudice.

SO ORDERED.

Dated : Brooklyn, New York
Fcbruary 6, 2018

s/Ann M. Donnelly

ANN M. DONNELLY, U.S.D.J.
Chair of the Committee on
Grievances, E.D.N.Y.
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Supreme Court of the State of New Pork
Appellate Bivision: Second Jidictal Department
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RANDALL T. ENG, P.J.
WILLIAM F. MASTRO
REINALDO E. RIVERA
MARK C. DILLON
JOSEPH I. MALTESE, JI.

2016-11604 OPINION & ORDER

In the Matter of James H. Fischer, an attorney and
counselor-at-law.

Grievance Committee for the Tenth Judicial District,
petitioner; James H. Fischer, respondent.

(Attorney Registration No. 2511020)

DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDING instituted by the Grievance Committee for. the
Tenth Judicial District. By decision and order on motion dated April 5, 2017, this Court, inter alia,
referred the issues raised in the verified petition dated October 18, 2016, the respondent’s answer
dated December 14, 2016, and the statements of disputed and undisputed facts filed by-each party,
to Norma Giffords, Esq., as Special Referee, to hear and report. The respondent was admitted to.the
Bar at a term of the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court in the First Judicial Depatrtment on
January 20, 1993,

Catherine A. Sheridan, Hauppauge, NY (Nancy B. Gabriel of counsel), for petitioner.

Long, Tuminello, LLP, Bayshore, NY (David Besso and Michelile Aulivola), for the

respondent.
PER CURIAM. The Grievance Committee for the Tenth Judicial
District served the respondent with a verified petition dated October 18, 2016, containing two

charges of professional misconduct. After a hearing held on June 13, 2017, the Special Referee
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sustained both charges in a report dated August 22, 2017. The petitioner now moves for an order
confirming the report of the Special Referee and imposing such discipline upon the respondent as
the Court deems appropriate. In an affirmation in response, the respondent’s counsel acknowledges
that the respondent has admitted the factual allegations underlying the charges, and in view of the
evidence adduced and the mitigating factors presented, requests that the matter be referred back to:
the petitioner for a private reprimand or at most, the Court impose a public censure.

The charges emanate from a dishonored check issued from the respondent’s attorney
trust account at Chase Bank, account no. ending 4063, entitled “James Fischer DBA: Fischer
Attorney AtLaw Trust Account IOLA” (hereinafter the trust account). Based upon the respondent’s
admissions, his sworn testimony, and the evidence adduced, in relevant part, the facts are as follows:
The Reyes-Matter .

The respondent represented an infant, Elizabeth Reyes, who had been a passenger in
a vehicle which was involved in an automobile accident. In-or about July 2015, Ms. Reyes’ matter
was settled for $10,000. The respondent reccived and deposited into the trust account two settlement
checks from Geico General Insurance Company, each made payable to “Jose Reyes as:custodian of
Elizabeth Reyes.” The first check, in the sum of $3,481.91, was deposited on July 27,2015, and the
second check, in the sum of $6,518.09, was deposited the following day, July 28, 2015.. From the
Reyes settlement proceeds, the respondent issued three checks, as follows:

(1) Check no. 1161, dated August 4, 2015, in the-amount of $2,481.91, payable to
“Steven Smith,” his co-counsel for the Reyes matter. This check cleared the trust account on August
10, 2015;

(2) Check no. 1162, dated September 5, 2015, iﬁ the amount of $1,000, payable to
the respondent for his legal fee. This check clearcd the trust account on September 8, 2015;

(3) Check no. 1160, dated August 4, 2015, in the amount of $6,518.09, payable to
“Jose Reyes.as custodian for Elizabeth Reyes.” When this check was presented on October 30,2015,
it was dishonored, as the trust account balance was $196.69, well below the $6,518.09 due the
respondent’s client.

By letter dated December 1,2015, the Lawyers’ Fund for Cliént Protection forwarded
to the petitioner and the respondent a copy of a report dated October 30, 2015, from Chase Bank

indicating that respondent’s check no. 1160 had been returned. A sua sponte complaint against the
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respondent was initiated by the petitioner based upon the dishonored check report. The respondent
eventﬁally, paid the settlement funds by forwarding Mr. Reyes a cashier’s check, dated January 4,
2016, in the sum of $6,518.09, and made payable to “Jose Reyes as custodian for Elizabeth Reyes.”
The Washington Avenue Transaction

In or about November 2015, the respondent represented 14 Washington Avenue,
LLC, as seller of real property located at 14 Washington Avenue, East Hampton, New York
(hereinafier the Washington Avenue transaction). The agreed sales price was $1,240,000, and a
down payment of $124,000 yas given by the purchaser, Ed’s Landscapes and Services Corp., to the
respondent, which he deposited into his trust accotnt on November 5, 2015. The respondent was
tequired to hold the down payment in the trust account until closing or as otherwise directed by the
parties.

Thereafier, the closing did not occur, and a dispute over the down payment arose
between the parties, which resulted in litigation. As reflected in the respondent’s bank statements,
between December 3, 2015, and February 8, 2016, thie respondent made the following six online

transfers from the trust account to his operating account, which totaled $11,400:

Date Amount
12/03/15 $ 50
12/16/15 $4,500
12/2115 $ 850
12/24115 $2,000
01/04/16 $2,500
02/08/16 $1,500

After the foregoing transfers were made, the balance in the respondent’s trust account on February
8, 2016, was $112,696.69, which was below the $124,000 he was required to maintain for the
Washington Avenue transaction.

The litigation stemming from the Washington Avenue transaction was settled
pursuant to a written agreement dated March 16, 2016. Therein, the parties agreed to terminate the
transaction and release the funds as follows: the prospective purchaser (Ed’s Landscapes and
Services Corp.) would receive $104,000, and the respondent’s client (14 Washington Avenue, LLC).

would receive $20,000.
Charges one and two of the petition allege that the respondent breached his fiduciary

duty by misappropriating funds entrusted to him in violation of rule 1.15(a) of the Rules of
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Professional Conduct (22 NYCRR 1200.0), in connection with the Reyes matter and the Washington
Avenue transaction, respectively.

At the hearing, the respondent claimed that the Reyes misappropriation was not
intentional, but was the product of a bookkeeping error, which caused an over disbursement in
another client matter. He testified that after the Reyes check was dishonored, he wanted to “double
check” his records before providing Mr. Reyes with the cashier’s check in January 2016.
Concerning his withdrawal of the Washington Avenue transaction funds, he claimed that the parties
had reached a verbal agreement, and his client was entitled to $20,000. He admitted that prior to the
execution of the written agreement, he made multiple transfers to his operating account without the
knowledge or consent of his client or the purchaser’s attorney.

Notwithstanding his contentions, the Special Referee found, and we agree, that the
shortfall in the respendent’s account was more than a bookkeeping error. Here, the record reflects
that, once the Reyes check had been dishonored, the respondent did not immediately reimburse his
client. It was not until two months later (and approximately five months after he received the
settlement funds), on January 4, 2016, that the respondent obtained a cashier’s check for Reyes.
During the inferim, beginning on December 3, 2015, the respondent made four transfers to his
operating account (totaling $7,400), and a fifth transfer of $2,500 on the day that he obtained a
cashier’s check for Reyes. We find that the respondent’s failure to immediately remedy the Reyes
misappropriation, and his continued removal of funds from the trust account before making Reyes
whole, belie his claim that the delay was required to “double check” his records. Rather, such
conduct evidences an intentional misappropriation of client funds. Moreover, notwithstanding his
knowledge that there was a trust account deficiency, the respondent removed disputed escrow funds
being held for the Washington Avenue transaction, without the knowledge or consent of the parties
to the transaction. Although the respondent claims that there was, a verbal agreement settling the
dispute which he relied upon to make the operating account transfers, the Special Referee found, and
we agree, that such claim is without merit, as the malter was in litigation and the parties had not
executed a written settlement agreement until March 16, 2016.

In view of the evidence adduced and the respondent’s admissions, the Special Referee
properly sustained both charges. Accordingly, the Grievance Committee’s motion to confirm the

report of the Special Referee is granted.
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In determining an appropriate sanction to impose, the.respondent’s counsel contends
that the misconduct occurred during a period when the 'respondent'had'requnsibilities in connection
with family businesses, and he was experiencing physical effects of injuries sustained in a 2013
automobile accident. In mitigation, among other things, he offers evidence of his good character,
as well as his cooperation with the petitioner’s investigation. We note that the respondent’s
disciplinary record is not unblemished, as he has received two admonitions for, among other things,
his neglect of legal matters, failure to timely pay an arbitration award, and failure to timely cooperate
with a grievance investigation,

Under the totality of the circumstances, notwithstanding the mitigating factors
advanced by the respondent and the request that the matter be referred back to the petitioner for a
private reprimand or, at most, a public censure, we find that a-suspension from the practice of law

for a period of two years is warranted (see Matter of Guardino, 150 AD3d 85).

ENG, P.J., MASTRO, RIVERA, DILLON and MALTESE, JJ., concur.

ORDERED that the petitioner’s motion to confirm the Special Referee’s report is
granted; and it is further,

ORDERED that the respondent, James H. Fischer, is suspended from the practice of
law for a period of two years, commencing January 29, 2018, and continuing until further order of
this Court. The respondent shall not apply for reinstatement earlier than July 29, 2019. In such
application (see 22 NYCRR 1240.16 and 691.1 1), the respondent shall furnish satisfactory proofithat
(1) during said period he refrained from practicing or attempting to practice law, (2) he has fully
complied with this order and with the terms and provisions of the written rules governing the
conduct of disbarred or suspended attorneys (see 22 NYCRR 1240.15), (3) he has complied with the
applicable continuing legal education requircments of 22 NYCRR 691.1 1(a), and (4) he has
otherwise properly conducted himself; and it is-further,

ORDERED that the respondent, James H. Fischer; shall promptly comply with the
rules governing the conduct of disbarred or suspended attorneys (see 22 NYCRR 1240.15); and it
is further,

ORDERED that, pursuant to Judiciary Law § 90, during the period of suspension and
until such further order of this Court, the respondent, Jamies H. Fischer, shall desist and refrain from
(1) practicing law in any form, either as principal or as agent, clerk, or cmployee of another, (2)
appearing as an attorney or counselor-at-law before any court, Judge, Justice, board, commission,
or other public authority, (3) giving to another an opinion as to the law or its application or any
advice in relation thereto, and (4) holding himself out in any way as an attorney and counselor-at-
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law; and it is further,

ORDERED that if the respondent, James H. Fischer, has been issued a secure pass
by the Office of Court Administration, it shall be returned forthwith to the issuing agency, and the
respondent shall certify to the same in his affidavit of compliance pursuant to 22 NYCRR
1240.15(f).

ENTER:

, : D
Aprilanne/Agds(ino
Clerk of the Court
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